ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 20, 2009
1:39 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE JUDI Cl ARY
Senator Hollis French, Chair
Senator Bill Wel echowski, Vice Chair
Senator Kim Elton
Senat or Gene Therriault

HOUSE JUDI CI ARY
Representati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Bob Lynn
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
Representative Lindsey Hol nes

MEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE JUDI Cl ARY
Senator Lesil MGQuire

HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY
Representati ve Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahlstrom Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ONS

Violent Crimes Conpensation Board

Regi na C. Chennaul t
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar
David L. Eichler
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
Al aska Judi ci al Counci

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -1- February 20, 2009



WIlliamF. C arke
Kat hl een R Tonpkins-M I | er
CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED

Cormmi ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct
Jan S. Ostrovsky
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Chris Brown (absent)
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to report.
W TNESS REG STER

REG NA C. CHENNAULT, Appointee

Violent Crimes Conpensation Board

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions fromthe commttee.

DAVI D El CHLER, Appoi nt ee

Board of Governors

North Pol e AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions fromthe commttee.

WLLIAM F. CLARKE, Appointee

Al aska Judi ci al Counci

Chugi ak AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions fromthe commttee.

KATHLEEN TOWPKI NS- M LLER, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Judi ci al Counci

Fai r banks AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions fromthe commttee.

JAN OSTROVSKY, Appoi ntee

Conmi ssi on on Judi ci al Conduct

Anchor age AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions fromthe commttee.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1:39: 03 PM
CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH called the joint neeting of the Senate and

House Judiciary Standing Commttees to order at 1:39 p.m
Senators Therriault, W el echowski , El t on, and French and

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 2- February 20, 2009



Representatives Lynn, G uenberg, Hol mes, and Coghill were
present at the call to order.

CONFI RVATI ON_ HEARI NGS

CHAI R FRENCH announced the business before the Senate and House
judiciary committees is to conduct a series of confirmation
heari ngs.

1:39: 35 PM
CONFI RVATI ON: Regina Chennault -- Violent Crines Conpensation
Boar d

REG NA C. CHENNAULT, Appointee, Violent Cinmes Conpensation
Board, Anchorage, said she is a general surgeon and has served
four or five years on the board already. She puts a lot of tine
into it and really enjoys working on the board. The termis four
years and there are three nenbers: one physician, one attorney,
and one public nenber.

CHAI R FRENCH said he has nmet her nmany times and is thrilled that
she is continuing on the board. It is extrenmely necessary work.
People who are victimzed in Al aska need soneone |ike Dr.
Chennaul t | ooking out for them

1:41: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he has net with Dr. Chennault. The
board sees sone of the toughest things. He believes she has a
good perspective.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that her resunme says her practice
is in Sol dotna.

DR. CHENNAULT said she noved to Anchorage about two years ago.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN said he has visited with her on sone
interesting matters, and she is forthright and know edgeabl e.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL noved to forward the nane Regina
Chennault to the full body for <confirmation. Hearing no
objection, it was so ordered.

CONFI RVATI ON: David Eichler -- Board of Governors
1:43: 02 PM

DAVID EICHLER, Appointee, Board of Governors, North Pole,
Al aska, said he has been a practicing dentist for 16 years. He

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 3- February 20, 2009



has been active in the community and is a nmenber of the Board of
Dental Examiners. His termon that board will expire in a couple
of years, and he wants to do sone other service.

CHAI R FRENCH not ed that he woul d be a new appoi nt ee.

DR EICHLER said the coonmittee has his old application, although
he did submt an updated one.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked i f t here is anyt hi ng
significantly different on the updated resune.

DR. EICHLER said no, except for his nenbership on the denta
board. He also does examnations throughout the country at
dental schools for initial licensure. H's term on the dental
board will end in 2011, so he will be on two boards.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that Dr. Eichler reported that a nenber
of the famly could be affected financially by this appointnent.

DR. EICHLER said that answer related to his position on the
Dental Board because it is a professional board that is self-
governed. There is no potential for conflict on the bar board.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said Dr. Eichler has an interesting
background. He worked in aninal science, he has a degree in
nursing, and he is a dentist. “That is quite a trip through the
health sciences.” Now he will do | egal work at the bar.

DR EICHLER said that is just the surface of his experience.

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that he is also a pilot. Al citizens
of Representative Coghill's district are extraordinary.

1:47.04 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said the Al aska Bar Association sets annual dues
for all the lawers in the state, and it has been his contention
that the dues for new entrants should be |lower. Mst states have
tiered bar dues so that young lowers pay less than | awers who
have been earning a living for some tinme. He has brought this
up, and the bar has shot his idea full of holes, but it is still
of interest to Chair French.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if he wants to acconplish anything
in particular.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 4- February 20, 2009



DR. EICHLER said he enjoyed the process of regulation on the
dental board. He wll be a public nmenber on the Board of
Governors, so he won't be bringing any professional expertise.
He has no agenda.

1:49: 07 PM

CHAIR FRENCH noted that people who are new to a board are
notivated by a desire to serve, but are not so famliar with the
board. He suggested that it my be beneficial to have the
executive director at these hearings to answer questions.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said wunlike the dental board, the bar
association operates outside the nornal budgeti ng process
whereby the commi ssion has to cone to the legislature to spend
noney. The dues that it collects are supposed to pay for the
operation of the board and any sanctions on people. The bar
associ ation operates off budget, and the legitimcy of that has
been questi oned. Senator Therriault has heard i ndividual
attorneys conplain about the level of bar dues “when the
association rolls forward $1 mllion.” The Board of Governors
hasn't seen fit to reduce the dues. The topic of “operating
out side the bounds of all other boards and comm ssions” nmay cone
before Dr. Eichler.

1:51:18 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said Representative Stoltz and Chair French have
worked on that issue. The dues did cone down about $100 this
year, but he doesn’t know if it was fromthose efforts.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to forward the nanme David Eichler
to the full body for confirmation. Hearing no objection, it was
so ordered.

CONFI RMATION: WIlliamF. darke -- Al aska Judicial Counci

1:52: 26 PM

WLLIAM F. CLARKE, Appointee, Al aska Judicial Council, Chugiak

Al aska, said he cane to Alaska as a pilot in the air force and
retired in 1984. He then worked for an engineering firm for 16
years. He joined the Anchorage rotary club and enjoys serving

the public. He feels that his life experiences as a senior
citizen work well in the judicial council. He is the ol dest
menber. His son, a Jlawer and a judge in Pennsylvania,

encouraged him to take this job. He believes seniors should be
nore active in the public process.

1: 54: 08 PM

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 5- February 20, 2009



CHAI R FRENCH said today’ s hearings include confirmation for the
Al aska Judicial Council and the Al aska Comm ssion on Judicial
Conduct. The roles of the two often get confused. He asked M.
Clarke to explain what the council does.

MR. CLARKE said it is an advisory body to the governor. It takes
menbers of the bar who have applied for judicial positions and
evaluates them It then presents the nost qualified list to the
governor. Self biases and judgnents cannot be used. The intent
is to give the governor the broadest spectrum of candidates to
choose from

CHAIR FRENCH surmsed that M. Carke wll be part of the
judicial selection process and asked if he has done this before.

MR. CLARKE said he has been doing that since Novenber, and the
| ast group that the council screened was for the Supreme Court
of Alaska. The judicial council is the finest group he has ever
wor ked with, and they made the job confortable.

CHAI R FRENCH asked how many nenbers are on the council, and M.
Clarke told himthere are six. Chair French said he admred him
for having a bachelor’s degree in English literature.

1:56: 35 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked how many applicants were reviewed for
t hat openi ng on the bench and how nany were forwarded.

MR CLARKE said there were six applicants and two were
f or war ded.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said there is a debate on whet her the counci
should forward all of the nanes that neet a certain threshold in
proficiency and expertise or whether it is the council's job to
narrow the field down to only two or three nanes.

MR. CLARKE said the governor should be given the largest |ist
that the council can reasonably present. Anyone can apply, but
the council nust screen for capable candidates. The |ist should
be as broad as possi bl e.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said there are concerns that the process is
so bruising that candidates won't try again even though they
scored highly. That is a shane. He asked about ideas to nake the
process gentler. Tough questions are OK, but the anonynous
corments may be an opportunity to savage folks and not nmake
meani ngf ul comments. The person commenting nmay have crossed the

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 6- February 20, 2009



applicant in litigation in the past and it becones an
opportunity to “just get ‘eni.

1:59: 21 PM

MR. CLARKE said he agrees with him regardi ng anonynbus comments.

Many nenbers don’t use the anonynous coments, but they are
avai l able and known to the applicant. He personally discounts
them |If a person can’'t sign a comment, M. Carke won't bring
it up in an interview. Council nenbers go out of their way to
make the interviews user friendly. They are very courteous and
encouraging. No one has been pilloried. It is a cordia

at nrosphere. The bar polls can be skewed, but it is easy to
identify and take into account. When nenbers cone up a second or
third time, they are told they are glad to see themagain. It is
not out of line for the judicial council to encourage people to
apply again. He has been truly inpressed by the professionalism
and cordiality of the other nenbers.

2:01:46 PM

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI said there has been sone talk on changing
the constitution regarding the way Alaska selects judges. He
asked if M. Carke has a position on that.

MR. CLARKE said the current nmethod is very good. "I wouldn't
change it because it allows the governor to be advised by a
group consisting of half professionals and half laynmen." It then

allows the public to coment by vote on the quality of the
judges. It is nore balanced than sinply el ecting judges.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked how he eval uates potential judges.

2:03: 26 PM

MR. CLARKE said the council is provided with a lot of materia
including a data file. He tries to get a total picture of the
person, including education and continuing education in |aw.

Sonme people are really avid about it. One candidate had a page
and a half of courses taken. He |ooks at how serious the person
is educating himor herself. He |ooks at the pro bono experience
and the spectrum of experience as a prosecutor and a defender.
The council | ooks for a balance of ©civil and crimna
experience. These are the major points of discussion.

2:05:45 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if he has a litnus test or if he
considers political ideology.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -7- February 20, 2009



MR. CLARKE said that is out of place for the council; that is
for the governor. The council’s job is to find people who have
t he professional background to do the job. The board is blind to
a person’s persuasions. The |list presented to the governor is a
professional |ist so the governor can conduct interviews know ng
t hat the people are qualified. The governor can add
di scrim nators as desired.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if he has had contact with the
Al aska Judicial Cbservers, which is a group that provides
i nformati on on how judges conduct courtroom proceedi ngs.

2:07:32 PM
MR CLARKE sai d no.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that M. Carke was a director
with R&M Engineering Consultants, and he asked if he was a
sharehol der. He asked if he thought the council should send al
nom nees to the governor.

MR. CLARKE said he was not a shareholder, and he doesn’t submt
nom nees who aren’t viable candi dates. When positions cone open,
anyone can apply, and it is the council's job to set a threshold
for the <candidates, so the governor is guaranteed that
applicants have the adequate background for the job.

2:09: 18 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noted that he served in Vietnam

MR. CLARKE said his two oldest sons were in the Marine Corps,
and he flew conbat mssions in Vietham He was a forward air
patroller.

2:10: 46 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI said he was inpressed with M. darke’s
answer on who gets submitted to the governor; that it is based
on experience, qualification, and professionalism That is how
j udges should be selected. If the comm ssion's goal is to submt
the best judges, it seens that by presenting less qualified
people to the governor opens it up to politics, and that should
be avoi ded.

MR. CLARKE said that is what he was saying. The council can
provide a list of qualified professionals wthout |ooking at
points of view The governor can conduct interviews and ask what
she or he wants to know The council is doing its job by not

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES - 8- February 20, 2009



applying political Ilitrmus tests, and the governor has the
ultimate responsibility for the appointnent.

2:13: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to forward the nanme WIlliam F.
Clarke to the full body for confirmation. Hearing no objection
it was so ordered.

CONFI RVATI ON: Kat hl een  Tonpkins-MIler -- Alaska Judicia
Counci | .

2:14:12 PM

KATHLEEN TOWPKI NS-M LLER, Appointee, Al aska Judicial Council,
Fai r banks, said she works part tine for her husband's law firm
as a secretary/paralegal and she is a part-tine student. She is
excited about the opportunity to serve on this council because
the judiciary is inportant to Al askans. Selecting good judges is
critical to good government and good comrunities. She has read
about the council and had contact wth nenbers. “One thing that
actually excites ne nost is the research projects because | am a
firmbeliever in therapeutic courts.”

CHAI R FRENCH noted that she will be new in this position, and he
asked if the council neets in Anchorage.

M5. TOWPKINS-M LLER said the council neets wherever the vacancy
i s open.

2:16: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if she had sonething to add about
the selection criteria for judges.

M5. TOWPKINS-M LLER said M. dark answered simlar to how she
woul d have answered. “We put forth the people that we feel
are the nost qualified for the governor.”

CHAIR FRENCH said she probably conmes in contact with a fair
nunber of attorneys when working in her husband s | aw offi ce.

M5. TOWPKI NS-M LLER said she does, and she has known a |ot of
them since they were students at Yale Law School. There will be
witing sanples to read on the council, and “lI’ve read a few of
those fromstudents clear up to today for other attorneys.”

CHAI R FRENCH surm sed that she is famliar with the |egal world.

He asked if M. dark said anything that she disagreed with and
if she could discuss her role in the selection process.

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -9- February 20, 2009



M5. TOWPKINS-M LLER didn’t disagree with M. C arke except there
are seven nenbers on the council. The exciting thing is that she
will bring a broad perspective. She has lived in Anchorage, Tok,
and Fairbanks. She has visited with different Native people, and
her husband was a magi strate, “so | have been able to see things
through nmany different eyes.” She is a nomand is active in her
community. She regularly deals wth people and their |egal
probl ens, so she may have a better perspective than an attorney.

2:19: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG not ed that her husband wote an article
entitled “Op-ed from Lead Attorney in Alaska Troopergate
Lawsuit,” and asked if those are her views.

M5. TOWKINS-MLLER said she is sonewhat famliar wth the
article. It doesn’t represent her views 100 percent. She is from
a very different famly, and she is able to stand alone. She
believes her husband is very smart, but she nakes her own
deci si ons.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is asking because it relates to
the role of the legislature vis-a-vis other branches of
government. He asked if she views the role of the judiciary as
strict constructionist or otherw se.

M5. TOWPKINS-MLLER said she believes that whoever is nost
qualified should go forward. She said she would have to | ook at
that article again. “There are so many things that Joe does,
that I mght briefly ook at, but | honestly have quite a life
outside of a ot of those things, so | don't renenber everything
in that piece or what it was about.”

2:21:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said his real question is if a
candidate’'s political or judicial philosophy should influence
whether they are sent up to the governor or retained by the
publi c.

VB. TOWKINS-M LLER said she believes that ©politics are
absolutely out of this. She will not bring any ideology to the
council. A judge needs to be able to apply the law fairly with
absol utely no bi ases.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said his wife doesn’'t share all his views.

CHAIR FRENCH said, “Ditto.”

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -10- February 20, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to forward the nane Kathleen
Tonmpkins-MIler to the full body for confirmation. Hearing no
objection, it was so ordered.

CONFI RMATI ON: Jan Ostrovsky -- Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct.

2:24:00 PM

JAN OSTROVSKY, Appointee, Conmm ssion on Judicial Conduct ,
Anchorage, said his resune doesn’t include his public service or
his service with the bar. He was one of the founders of the
bankruptcy section of the Al aska bar. He has been a nenber of
the Committee on Bar Examiners, the Fee Arbitration Panel, and
the ABA Task Force on Attorney Discipline. He found them all
interesting and rewarding, and this commi ssion should be too. It
is a fairly inportant position in that the Alaska judiciary is a
very good one, and a lot of that has to do with the nethod of
selection. The commssion’s role of seeing to it that the
judiciary stays respected, ethical, and inpartial is inportant,
“and | would be proud to serve on this comm ssion.”

2:26:01 PM
CHAIR FRENCH asked him to draw the distinction between the
judicial council and the Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct.

MR. OSTROVSKY said the conmssion hears conplaints against

sitting judges - it isn't involved with the appointnent of
judges. It determnes or sets up for a decision by the suprene
court issues of conplaints against judges. It issues advisory

and et hi cal opinions concerning judicial conduct.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if M. Ostrovsky has served yet or appeared
before the comm ssion.

MR. OSTROVSKY said he hasn’t had anything to do with it.

CHAIR FRENCH said his resume is long and distinguished, and the
commi ssion would be lucky to have himas a nenber.

MR. OSTROVSKY said, in response to Senator Therriault, that
Larry Ostrovsky is his brother.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Ostrovsky about his Avvo
rating. “Is that Martindal e Hubbell AvV?”

MR OSTROVSKY said, “Yes, it is.”

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -11- February 20, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is the best rating a |awer
can have.

MR. OSTROVSKY said there are two different ratings [in his
resune]. The Martindale Hubbell rating is AV. There is another
rating service called Avvo, and his rating is superb in
Washi ngton. Avvo doesn’t rate Al aska attorneys.

2:28:59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to forward the nane Jan Ostrovsky
to the full body for confirmation. Hearing no objection, it was
so order ed.

CHAIR FRENCH said M. Brown [Chris Brown, Appointee to the

Comm ssion on Judicial Conduct] is sick and will not be calling
in to the hearing today. He doesn’t want to hold the other
nom nees up. So the commttee will sign the letter and Chair
French will ~create a new coversheet for the interviewd

candi dates. Only the interviewed candidates wll be forwarded.
2:30:45 PM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:30 p. m

JT. S/H JUD COW TTEES -12- February 20, 2009



